
From: hth@lanl.gov on behalf of Todd Haagenstad [hth@lanl.gov] 
Sent: Wednesday, December 14, 2005 4:33 PM 
To: Owens, Kirk W.; roles@saic.com 
Cc: ewithers@doeal.gov; 'Ron Rager'; goldberg@lanl.gov; rhull@lata.com; isaacson@lanl.gov; sradz@lanl.gov 
Subject: Other SWEIS Data Call Deliverables 
 
Attachments: Generals Tanks Investigation activities.doc; The General's Tanks Characterization Activities 
Documented Safety Analysis.pdf 
Kirk/Gary, 
  
Ron Rager asked me to send along this more detailed description of investigation activities.  Also included is the DSA for the 
General’s Tanks Characterization. 
  
Let me know if you have any questions. 
  
Todd Haagenstad 
Environmental Characterization and Remediation 
Environmental Stewardship Division 
Los Alamos National Laboratory 
(505) 665-2936    



Initial Entry and atmosphere stabilization, and sampling 
 
Activity Scope 
 
This task represents office, field and laboratory activities for the 2 Generals Tanks within 
PRS 21-014 MDA A at TA-21.   The project is planned to be implemented as part of 
Surveillance and Maintenance of the MDA A Nuclear Environmental Site (NES) in 
compliance with 10 CFR 830, and is the provides the data needed for successful 
stabilization and long term disposal of the remaining tank contents.  
 
This scope sequentially includes an initial criticality review of the passive 
characterization data collected in Phase 1, preparation of a USQ and modification of the 
DSA to accommodate Phase 2 field activities into the NES SER, fabrication and 
installation of AEA equipment, mixing of the tank contents and collection of samples 
from the mixed contents uses the AEA technology.  Analysis of the post mixing samples 
at AEA identify modifications required to equipment in order to perform final mixing and 
stabilization and confirm the initial RCRA determination. 
 
This scope includes: 
   - Fabrication of AEA equipment (Phase 2 activity) 
   - Preparation of a Documented Safety Analysis (DSA) for the task work (for Phase 2 
activities), 
   - Modifying the Work Plan, if necessary (for Phases 2-3 activities), 
   - Modifying the Waste Characterization Plan, if necessary (WCP for Phases 2-3 
activities), 
   - Coordinating the project execution planning/strategy (for Phase 2), 
   - Preparing a SSHASP, IWD, QAP, and training (for Phase 2 activities), 
   - Operational Readiness Reviews (Phase 2) 
   - Installation of AEA equipment (Phase 2 field activity) 
   - Mixing of the tank contents (Phase 2 activity) 
   - Mixed contents sampling and analysis (Phase 2 activity), 
   - Prepare final mix design (Phase 2 activity) 
 
 
The USQ process is required by 10 CFR 830, and will address hazards associated with 
implementing the proposed Phase 2 field activities.  If necessary, the Work Plan and 
Sampling plan prepared in Phase 1 will be modified.  New SSHASP and IWD will be 
prepared to accommodate the new field activities.  Work will be performed according to 
IMP 300-00-00.   
 
The justification for this task is to fulfill the requirements of 10 CFR 830 the Nuclear 
Safety Management and to provide data for final stabilization of the tanks contents..   
 
Specific Work Elements: 
 



General's Tanks (GT) Work Plan:  Preparation of the work plan for entry into the tanks, 
characterizing the tank contents, and stabilizing the contents by in-place mixing.  The 
work plan, which includes the site-specific Health and Safety Plan (SSHASP), waste 
management plan (WMP), sampling analysis plan (SAP), quality assurance plan (QAP) 
and training of workers under these plans. 
 
Documented Safety Analysis:  This activity consists of revising a draft DSA and 
expanding to include tank entry, atmosphere stabilization, and passive sampling, to 
replace the DOE approved S&M DSA.  This includes a zero scoping meeting with SBO, 
NWIS, and DOE, 30%, 70%, 90%, draft Final and Final DSR and TSD preparation and 
reviews, and Implementation Plan preparation, review and approval. 
  
Operational Readiness Review (ORR for Phase 1 - Access stabilization and passive 
characterization):  Requirements of the readiness review are outlined in the readiness 
review checklist found in QP 5.3, current revision, Readiness Review Procedure for the 
Environmental Restoration Project.  Primarily an ER subcontractor performs these 
activities. This activity consists of all logistical, supply procurement, subcontracting, 
equipment and supply procurement, permit(s) acquisition, and document preparation for 
the readiness review.   Some of these preparation activities include: 
 
a) Prepare and document the work performed through the Integrated Work Management 
(IWM) process, IMP 300-00-00. 
b)Complete ESH-ID questionnaire for site activities at the General’s Tanks within MDA 
A. All issues brought up by the ESH reviewers will be resolved prior to the readiness 
review. 
c) Prepare and obtain approval of an IWD for the field activities.  Requirements are found 
in the ER Project HASP, Revision 1, March 31, 1998, LPR 402-00-00.0 Worker Safety 
and Health, and others.  
d) Prepare and obtain approval of a facility-tenant agreement with the Facility 
Management.   
e) Obtain excavation permits and have utilities marked where appropriate.  Requirements 
are found in LIR402-880-01, Excavation/Soil Disturbance Permit Process. 
f) Obtain required permits, such as a Radiological Work Permit, Hot Burn Permit, and/or 
Special Work Permit. Other Special Work Permits can be found in other LIRs. 
g) Coordinate and plan sampling activities with the Sample Management Organization 
(SMO). 
h) Prepare and submit notifications to FSF, DOE, NMED, FMU, non-DOE property 
owners, Los Alamos County, etc, as appropriate. 
i) Complete and verify training for all site workers, including LANL and other 
subcontractors. 
 
Following preparation for the MSA and readiness review, a readiness review meeting 
will be held.  All comments and issues arising from the readiness review meeting will be 
resolved prior to start of field work, and the readiness review checklist must be signed by 
the Project Leader, SMO representative, and Quality Program Project Leader.  MSA 



documenting Memorandums of approval must be obtained from the RDL and RLM. A 
Laboratory readiness review will be prepared and conducted. 
 
Field Implementation:  A subcontractor will establish job-site controls including 
modification to the existing fence.  Access will accommodate the Phase 2 and 3 
operations.  The tank access points will be designed by the subcontractor based on 
verified tank geometry and conditions, as well as the AEA equipment requirements.  
There will be three access locations in each tank.  The design will establish adequate 
ventilation of the tanks to allow Phase 2 and 3 work to be accomplished without Level B 
PPE.  The design will accommodate the AEA Fluidic System. 
 
The subcontractor will fabricate and install the design modifications. 
 
The subcontractor will fabricate a tube sampler capable of sampling the sludge at the six 
access locations.  The subcontractor will sample the sludge and submit samples to the 
SMO for testing. 
 
Data Summary Report:  Following completion of analytical results, the data will be 
evaluated in order to confirm the RAD only assumption for the waste.  The report will be 
shared with NMED in an effort to keep them informed of the contents of MDA A.  It the 
sample results are shown to contain RCRA chemicals of concern, NMED would be 
notified, and an appropriate path forward negotiated. 
 
Preliminary Engineering Design:  The DOE Environmental Management (EM) program 
currently has a contract with a AEA Technologies for a proprietary system capable of 
providing tank heel sampling, mixing, removal or in-place grouting.  A plant that can be 
modified to be capable of these operations is available at LANL.  AEA will provide 
preliminary design and pilot testing of their modified equipment under the EM funded 
contract.  The design takes into account the entry requirements into the tank, but is not 
inclusive of the actual excavation and general contracting requirements. 
 
Estimating Assumptions and Exclusions for field construction activities: 
 
1.Relied upon expertise from Joe Faldowski, AEA Technology 
a.Design and engineering work to be accomplished with budget remaining on existing 
contract.  
b.Experience gained at TA-50, following similar processes 
c.Use of existing off-gasing skid will provide adequate service for both tanks; with 
following modifications (more economical than new equipment purchase): 
i.New HEPA filters, plumbing, fittings, electrical supply, and possible instrumentation 
modifications 
ii.Build platform to support equipment over tanks 
iii.Remove, load onto truck, haul, unload and install on-site 
iv.Six months of operating off-gasing skid (one-set of HEPA filters is adequate) will 
cover duration from initial access, testing, design, and actual treatment of the tanks. 



d.Tanks are located 18 feet below grade. Assume need for some surface area removal, to 
lower the grade for equipment to operate closer to tank elevation and minimize pumping 
height. 
e.Two additional 10-inch risers will be sufficient to access and treat the tanks (in addition 
to one current access point for each tank) for a total of three access points per tank. 
Survey team used to locate existing gas lines. Do not expect to have any interference 
from these lines, simply identify and mark for safety purposes. 
 
Activity 2 Mixing and testing for cement design mix 
 
Scope 
 
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
Safety Management and to provide data for final stabilization of the tanks contents. 
 
Specific Work Elements: 
 
Support DOE in Contractor Procurement:  This activity consists of preparing a Statement 
of Work (SOW) that describes the engineering design task, field mixing of the tanks 
contents, and laboratory analysis work to be performed by AEA, conducting reviews of 
the SOW, reviewing the proposal and performing technical evaluations.  It is assumed 
that a hot-cell facility will be required. 
 
Prepare a USQ/modify DSA/TSRs:  This activity consists of revising a draft DSA and 
expanding to include AEA technology and sampling, mixing operations and final 
stabilization (Task 3), including DOE approval of a modification of the existing S&M 
DSA through the USQ process. 
 
Prepare the Operational Readiness Review #2:  Requirements of the readiness review are 
outlined in the readiness review checklist found in QP 5.3, current revision, Readiness 
Review Procedure for the Environmental Restoration Project.  Primarily an ER 
subcontractor performs these activities. This activity consists of all logistical, supply 
procurement, subcontracting, equipment and supply procurement, permit(s) acquisition, 
and document preparation for the readiness review.   Some of these preparation activities 
include: 
 
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
 
Following preparation for the readiness review, a readiness review meeting will be held.  
All comments and issues arising from the readiness review meeting will be resolved prior 
to start of field work, and the readiness review checklist must be signed by the Project 
Leader, SMO representative, and Quality Program Project Leader. 
 
Fabrication of equipment:  The AEA will modify existing equipment as needed to 
conform to the engineering design developed in work element F8.  A subcontractor will 
be selected to install the AEA equipment. 
 
Tank mixing and sampling:  The tank contents will be mixed and samples will be 
obtained for analysis. 
 
Analysis of Mixed Samples:  The mixed samples will be tested to assure that mixing did 
not adversely impact anticipated performance of the grouted material.  The results will be 
used to prepare the final grout mixing design and process. 






























